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ROMAN' VILLA. AT GRATELY, NEAR
ANDOVER. ‘

The discovery of a small piece of tesselated pavement at
Grately, brings the number of considerable Roman buildings
within a six-mile circle of Andover up to the remarkable total
of ten. The others are situated at Thruxton, Appleshaw,
Redenham, Clanville, Abbot's Ann, Fullerton, Andover Down,
Hurstbourne and Finkley.

- The intersection of the Winchester-Cirencester and Sil-
chester-Sarum Roman roads is about a mile from Andover.

The portion discovered is only about 8ft. by 4ft., and consists
of a rather rough pavement with a white ground, divided on
one side into squares of some nine inches bordered by red
bands of about a hands-breadth wide. Another small piece
of a few inches square was found a few feet off.

The foundations of several walls have been exposed which
consist of large flints set in mortar. These are being picked

" up and carted away ; the accompanying plan shews the parts

exposed on October 6th. It seems very unlikely that any
considerable portion of the pavement remains in other parts as
it only lies ten or twelve inches below the surface, and the
whole field was steam ploughed to a depth of 18 inches some

twenty yearsago, The portions that do remain were evidently

jumped by the plough owing to its striking the flint wall, -
There are traces of more foundations in several places to the
South and West of the part exposed, and it is said that a cellar
about six feet deep was found'a few years ago (? hypocaust),
and aringand a coin are also said to have been discovered.” In
certain states of crops it is said that the track of a road can be
made out running from the site of the villa to the gate leading
from the field into the present Grately Station-Stockbridge
Road, and this road probably occupies the site of the * British”
trackway from Amesbury by Quarley Hill and Danebury to
Worlbury.
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The field in which the Villa is situated is the property of
Lord Lawrence, and is bounded by the above-mentioned road,
the Grately Village-Wallop Road, and the L. & S. W. Railway.

The exact position of the piece of pavement may be found
as follows :—Walking from Grately Village along the. Wallop
Road, after going under the Railway Bridge, stop at the third -
gateway on the right. From the centre of this gateway take
a line to the chimney in the centre of a cottage at Palestine
which is seen on the sky-line to the S.W. just to the right ofa
clump of beeches. About 240 yards along this line, take a
cross bearing from the Northern end of the plantation on
Danebury Hill to the-telegraph pole next on the right of the
signal post that lies between Grately Station and Railway
Cottages. Where these lines intersect is the pavement It is
about three-quarters of a mile South-East of the Silchester-
Sarum Roman road.

J.P.W-F.
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LIST OF HAMPSHIRE EARTHWORKS,
CLASSIFIED ACCORDING TO THE SCHEDULE
OF THE EARTHWORKS COMMI'II"I,‘EE-. .

Dr.. Williams-Freeman, whose article on Danebury opens
the present Part of the Hampshire Field Club Proceedings,
. sends the following valuable List of Earthworks in the County,
. with the numbers of the six-inch O.S. sheets on which they
are shewn. He does so in the hope that Members of the.Club
may be able to give him information which may help him to
make it still more complete. It is intended to publish the
revised list in the next Part of the Proceedings together with
extensive notes and descriptions. Dr. Williams-Freeman will.
be very grateful to anyone who can aid him in his search.

EprTor.

CLASS A. Promontory Fortresses.
(1) “Double Dykes " Hengistbury :
near Christchurch . 0.S. LXXXVII. N W.

(2) Porchester ... . LXXXV, S.E.
(3) Bitterne Manor, near 'South- o _
T ampton - LXV. N.E,
(4) The Andyke, Bransbury, near B
Andover - .. .- XXIV. S.E,
(5) Pyott's Hill, near Basmgstoke XIX. S.W
'(6) Butser Hill, near Petersfield (?) LX. N.E.

CLASS B. Hill Top Fortresses.

(Section i.)- TRue HiLrToPs,

(1) Camsar’s Hill, Aldershot ...  XX. S.E.
(2) Whitsbury,near Fordingbridge LIV. N.W.&N.E.
(3) Ladle Hill, Sydmonton . IX. S.W,

(4) Beacon Hill, Burghclere ... VIII. S.E.



(5)

(6)
(7)

&

(9)
(10)

(11)

(1)
(2

(3)
@
{5)
(6)
()

(8)
(9)

(10)
(11)
 (12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(x6)
(r7)
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CLASS B.—Continued.

Walbury,Combe,nearHunger-
ford .
Quarley Hill, near Andover
Danebury, near Stockbndge
Bury Hill, near Andover
Woolbury, near Stockbridge...

St. Cartherine’s Hill, Win-
chester .
0Old W:nchester Hill, near
Meonstoke

1I.S.W.
XXII. S.E.
XXXI. S.E.

- XXIII. SEE.
XXXII. S.W.

L.N.W,

LIX, N.E.

(Section ii.) THOSE oN Lgss Lorty GROUND.

Winklebury, Basingstoke

Tidbury, Bullington,
Whitchurch ' .

Norsbury, Stoke Charity, near
‘Winchester

near

Bagsbury or Balksbury, near
.. XXIIL N.E, &S E.

Andover -
Castle Top,
Forest .
Frankenbury or Godmanes
Cap, Godshill; New Forest
Oliver's Battery, Abbotston
Down, near Alresford
Mortimer West End

Burley, New

Chilworth R:ng, near Souti:- '

ampton

I Malwood, New Forest

Dunwood, near Romsey
Lockerly, near Romsey

'Holbury, near Lockerley

Medstead

Toot Hill, near Rumsey .

Tatchbury Mount, near Totton
Bevisbury, Hampshite Gate,
Tangley, near Andover

XVIII. N.E.
XXIV. S.E.

XXXIII. N.E.

"LXXI. S.\W,
LXII. N.E.

XXXIV. S.W.
XIV. S.E.

LVIL S.W.
LXIV. S.W.,
XLVIIL S.W.
XLVIIIL N.W.
XLVI, N.W.
XXXIV. S.E.
LVIL S.W.
LXIV. N.E.

- XV. N.wW.
(Not Shewn)
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CLASS  B:—Continued.
(18) Old Pound, Harewood Forest,

. near Andover ... *°

(19) Tunorbury, Hayling Island ...

(20) Buckland Rings,nr. Lymington .

(21) Bullsdown,:Sherfield on Lod-
don, near Basingstoke

~ (22) St. Catherine’s Hill, Christ-

church o .
(23) Ashurst Lodge, nr. Lyndhurst
(24) Silchester Rampiers

XXIV. S.W.
LXXXIV. S.E.
LXXX. S.W,

XI. N.W.
LXXXVI. N.E.

. LXXII. N.E.
IV. S.E.

CLASS C. 'Rectangular or other Simple Enclosures.

(a) Roman STaTIONS,
(1) Silchester
(2) Porchester ..
(b) RECTANGULAR. ,
(1) Ellisfield, near Basingstoke ...
(2) Oliver’s Battery, Old Basing...

(3)- Ridgehanger, Froxfield, near .

Petersfield .
(4) Oliver Cromwell's Battery,
Winchester .
(5) Hordle Cliff, near Lymmgton

(6) Sherborne St. John Village,

: near Basingstoke
(7) Morgaston Wood, near Sher-

borne St. John, Basingstoke -

(8) Island's Thorne Enclosure,
Fritham, New Forest e

(9) Bat's Hogstye, Aldershot
(10) Small Camp, Ladle Hill, Syd-
- monton, near Kingsclere...
(11) . Martin Down, near Fording-
bridge
(c) IRREGULAR QUADRILATERAL. °
(1). Ashley (Roman) near Stock-

bridge - | ..
(2) Egbury, near Andover

0.S. IV. S.E.
LXXV. S.E.

XXVI. N.E.
XIX. N.W.

LIL S.E.

XLIX. N.E.

LXXXVIL S.E.

X. S.E.

X. S.E.

LXIII. N.W.,
XX. S.E.

IX. S.W.
L1V. A. N.E.

X.L. S.W.
* XVL N.E.



(d)
(1)

346

CLASS C.—Continued.

IRREGULAR PENTAGON.

Soldiers™ R_ings', near Fording-
bridge-

LIV.A.S.E. and

LIV, SW

CLASS D Forta consrstmg ‘of Mount with Enc:rclmg

(1)
(2)

Ditch only.

Crondall
School)

Woodcote

" (near Workhou se

..0.8.XXVIILN.E.

" VIII. S.E.

CLASS E. Mounts with Traces of Attached Banleys.

@)
(1)
. (2)

(3)

(4)
(s)
(6)
KO

@®)

(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(b).
(14)

: (15)
. (16)
“(17)

WeLL- MARKED EARTHWORKS.

Woodgarston, nr. Basingstoke |

Southwick, near. Fareham
Pinsley, Portsdown Hill, near
Fareham .

Idsworth (Motley Copse), near'

Rowlands Castle
Barley Pound Copse,
Crondall .
Castle Hill,
Forest.
Ashley.- (near
Stockbridge -
Old Basing -

Godshill, New

Church), near

.Merdon.Castle, Hursley

Rowland's Castle

Odiham Castle ....

Twynam Castle, Chrlstchurch

Portchester.Castle

Eartuworks Less.MaARKED. .

Warbhn‘gton Castle, near
Havant .- :

Winchéster Castle

Wolvesey Castle, - Wmchester.,

Southampton Castle -

near

0.S. X. S.W.
LXXV. N.E.

LXXV. N.E.
LXVIIL S.E.
XXVIIL N.W.

" LIV. S.E.

XL.S.W.
XIX. N.W.
XLIX. N.E,
LXVIIL S.E.
_XIX. N.E.
LXXXVI. S.E,
LXXV. S.E.

LXXVI. S.E.
- XLL S.W.
XLL S.W.
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CLASS F. Homestead Moats.

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

(7) -

(8)
(9)

(10)
(11)

.Milton, near Christchurch 0.S. LXXXVII. N.E,
Priory Farm, Pamber End ... 0.S X.NE.

Beaurepaire House : » X.N.E.
-Cufaude Farm, near the Vyne ) » X. S.E.
Turgis Court, Stratfield Turgis » XL N.W.
Holdshot Farm, Mattingley .. » XL N.E,

Sherfield Court, (on Lodden) » XI.S.W.
Lancelevy Farm, Sherfield on -

Lodden » XI.SW.
Clapper’s Farm, Sllchester » 1V. S.E.
These (2 to g inclusive) are all :

near Basingstoke. :

Otterbourne Manor House ... XLIX. S.E.
Marwell. Manor . - LVIIL. N.W. -~

.Both near Winchester. e

-CLASS G. Homestead Ramparfed and Fossed.

(z)

Thruxton Manor Farm, near
Andover ..0.S. XXIII. N.W.

CLASS H. Earthworks Pro!ectm; Village Sites.

(None known.)

.CLASS X. Earthworks not included under above

(a)

(b)

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)

eadings.
Derensive Dykes.
Bockerley Dyke, Martm, near
Fordingbridge .. ...LIV.A. N.E.&S.E.
Grimsdyke 0 T ...LIV.N.E. and
’ - XLVI A. S.E.
Froxfield Entrenchments ... LII, NNW.&S.W.

(Not Shewn.)
Devil's Ditch, near Andover XVI. S.W.
Bounpary DITCHES. . :
Woden's Dyke, near Andover VIIIL. S.W.
Cholderton Hill ,, = XXII. S.E.
Portland Bank, Ampfield, near '
Romsey i

Hiltingbury Common, near
Chandlersford o ame



@

®

L@

(5)
(6)
(7
(8)

(x)
(?)
(3)
B

(6)
(7)

(9)

(10)

(1)
(12)
(13)
(14)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

- (5)

©-

(7
(8)
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CLASS X +Cosﬁumd.

'Blsbo s Ditch, New Forest

e T [ e
Holmhill Passage ,, Lo e T
Awbridge Danes... ... XLVIIL. S.W,

. (Not Shewn.)

LonG BArrows. o

A mile S. of Old Winchester -
Hill ' LIX. N.E,
‘Upper Woodcote Farm, near -

Whitchureh ... . © VIII. S.E.

Moody's Down, Barton Stacey,
near Andover (a pair) s XXXII. N.E.

.Chilbolten, near Andover ... - XXZXII. S.E.
A mile N.E. of Danebury ... XXXI. N.E.
;»»  NJW. - » (apair)  XXXI. N.W,
Weyhill (near, Fairground) ) _
near Andover ... XXIII. N.W.
« Giant's Grave” N.E: of - -
Whitsbury ... . LIV. N.E.
¢« Ducksnest " N. W of Wl:uts- .
bury "LIV. N.W,
“ Gran's Barrow " nr, Rockbourne (doubtful)
"¢ Knap Barrow ” § . : LIV. N.W.

St. Giles’ Hill, Winchester- (?)
Clanfield Down (?)
Coombe Gallows, neat Hunger-
ford .“
-GROUPS OF RGUND Bannows.
Near Cesar’s Camp, Aldershot (seven)
,» Beacon Hill Camp, Burgh-
clere (seven)

Near Quarley Hill Camp (mx)

»» Danebury Camp (sevén) recently destroyed
Clarendon Hill; near Sldbury

Camp (eight) .
Old Winchester Hill Camp, inside and out (ten)
“ Popham Beacons" neatr,

Micheldéver Station (five) ...
“The Jumps™ near Cheriton



(e)

@)

(1)

(2)
(3)

(4)
(5
6

(7)
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CLASS X.—Continued.

MiscELLANEOUS.
* The Moat "’ Longstock, near -
‘Stockbridge ... .. 0.S. XXXI. S.E.
. Monkwood, Alton’ .  XXXV.N.E.

John of Gaunt's . Deer-park,
King's Somborne, near

Stockbridge ... .. XXXIX, S.E.
Ashley’s Copse, Nether Wallop, :

near Stockbridge ... XXXVIIL N.E.
Bradley Wood, near Preston ,

Candover ves XXVI. S.E.
Half Moon,near West Wellow, ~ .

near Romsey ... LVI. S.W.
“Black - Barfow,” Linwood. : !

New Forest ... . wre LXIIL S.W.

Rockbourne Knoll (IHill'Fort)
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~ RECENT PUBLICATIONS
CONCERNING OR CONNECTED
WITH HAMPSHRE.

Aubrey, Elinor R. - The History and Antiquites of South-
ampton, with some conjectures concerping the Roman
Clausentum, by John Speed, M.D., written .about the year
1770. Edited with Introduction, Notes and Index by
‘Elinor R. Audrey, M.A. 15/g9net. (Southampton: Cox and
Sharland, 1909). : :

For 116 years, that is.since 1794, the beautifully written and unique manu-
script of Dr. Speed's ** History of Southampton ™ has been reposing in the
Municipal Buildings of the Southampton Corporation. It has been referred
“to from time to time by those who have been interested in the early history of
the borough, and it was drawn on very extensively by the late Rev. J. Silvester
Davies when he was preparing his monumental work on Southampton. But
not until now has it been printed in its entirety. Miss Aubrey has done the-
task-of editing the manuscript exceedingly well. Her numerous and valuable.
notes supplement in a most useful manner Dr. Speed’s information. In a
delightful introduction, writien with much hnmour and charm, Miss Aubrey
deaacdbes the Southampton of 1770 in which Dr. Speed lived and squabbled
and wrote,

Bellocy H. The Old Road. Illustrated by William Hyde.
(London: Constable and Co.) 7/6 net.

This volume is a re-issue in octavo form of the brilliant study in Historical
Geography which Mr. Belloc published in quarto form six years ago. It is a
book ofp wzich both author ant‘:l) publisher have reason to be proud. The print,
the paper, the binding, the illustrations, make it a delight to handle. As to
the subject’ matter, 1t is already so justly famous that comment is almost
superfluous. Mr., Belloc, of course, describes in this book the ‘old “ Pilgrims'

ay,” which extended from Winchester through Surrey and Kent to Canter-
bury. He, himself, traversed on foot every inci of the track which be describes,
and he has'embodied his investigations and observations in a study of most
fascinating interest. To those who know the Southern Counties merely as
scenes of natural beauty, it-is a revelation to find that numerous traces of +
historic events and bygone civilisations manifest themselves in these same
regions to the trained eye of the skilled investigator. This beautiful and
absorbing volume should make an ideal gift book for those whose interest lies
in local history.

Bicknell, E. E. The Channel Islands. 2/6 net. (London:
Methuen, 1910). :

Davidson, Flovence A. G. Monk Sherbarne, a History of the
Parish. 1/- net. (Basingstoke, 1909).
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" Gidden, H. W. The Charters of the Borough of South-
ampton. Edited with Introduction, Translation and Notes
by H. W. Gidden, M.A. . Vol.'L,, A.D., 1199-1480. 15/9 net.
(Southampton: Cox & Sharland, 1g90g). Vol. I, A.D,,
1480-1836. 15/g net. (Southampton: Cox & Sharland, 1910).

These two bulky volumes represent some four years of devoted labour on
the part of their scholarly editor. To have collated the whole of the Charters
of the Borbugh for six-and-a-half centuries with the original manuscripts, 1o
have translated them, and to have added historical notes elucidating their
references is a heavy task, on the completion of which Mr. Gidden is to be
heartily congratulated. Several of the charters here presented have been
hidden-away for centuries in the Audit House, and are now printed for the first
time, For those who have patience to study them, they throw a flood of light
upon the constitutional history of Southampton, and upon the general relation
og'oer;tr::] to local authorities during many periods of ‘our history. Mr.
Gidden’s work, as translator and commentator, is of admirable quality, and" he
has placed the Borough of Southampton heavily in his debt.

Hearushaw, F. J. C. The Story of the Pilgrim.Fathers,
especially showing their connection with Southampton. ~6d.
net. (Southampton: W. H. Smith and Son, 1910.)

. Hearnshaw and Clarke. A Short History of Southampton.

2/- net... Part 1. The Story of Southampton in relation to the
History of Englarid, by F. J. C. Hearnshaw, M.A.,, LL.D,, -
.Professor of History in the Hartley University College. Part
II. Some Aspects of Town-Life, by members of the South-
-ampton - Historical Association and others. Edited by F.
Clarke, M.A., Professor of Education in the Hartley Univer-
sity College. - I. Municipal Life, by F. W. Camfield, M.A.
11.- The Commerce of Southampton, by F. W: Camfield, M.A.
II1. The Industries of Southampton, by F. W. Camfield, M.A.
V. . Streets and Roads, by G. .-F. Darling. V, Common
Lands, by G. F Darling. VI. Ancient Fortifications, by
R. M. Lucas, F.R.I.B.A. VII. Historical Documents of the
Town, by H. W. Gidden, M.A. VIII. The Churches before
the Reformation, by F. Clarke, M.A. IX. The Churches
after the Reformation, by F. Clarke, M.A. X. The Schools,
by C. H. Holmes, B.A. XI. Great Men, by Miss Constance
Fox. (Oxford University Press, 1910).

Hunt, Edmund J. The Story of the Isle of Wight.
(Hewitson, 1910). .

Mate and Riddle. Bournemouth: 1810-1910. The History
‘of a Modern Health and Pleasure Resort, by Charles H.
Mate, |.P., F.].I., and Charles Riddle, Borough Librarian,
with Preface by the Duke of Argyll. With illustrations of
Bournemouth, old and new. Maps and Estate Plans. D. 8vo.,
291 pp.; 5s. net. (W. Mate and Sons, Ltd., Bournemouth.)

1f the centenary celebrations which have been held this yearat Bournemouth
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have served no other purpose, they have justified themselves by calling forth
this excellent and most interesting history of the borough. It is amazing that
a town whose existence does not extend far beyond the memory of its oldest
inhabitant, should have a record so full and fascinating. There is, of course,
little to be said concerning Briton, Roman, Saxon and Dane; but' there is
much to be told by way of compensation respecting modern enterprise,
engineering skill, vigorous municipal enterprise, and almost unchecked
development. It is a wonderful story of the triumph of man over nature, and
a triumph which has not involved the destruction of nature, nor even its injury,
but merely its moulding to the service of human health and happiness. The
authors have told their story with grace and distinction ; the artists have
adorned the volume with a series of fine illustrations, but the binders have done
their best to ruin the whole by putting on a cover which is wholly unworthy of
the book. N ;
Mullins, W. H. Gilbert White of Selborne. 2/6 net.
(London: Wetherby, 1910). _ ]
Summer, Heywood. The Book of Gorley (New Forest and
Avon'Valley). 15s.net. (Southampton: Gilbert & Son, 1910).
Varley and Ball. Winchester : described -by Rev. Telford
Varley, M.A., B.Sc., and painted by Wilfred Ball, R.E.,
pp. 200. With 24 illustrations and plan: Demy 8vo. 7/6
net. (London: A. & C. Black). :
Whitaker, William, B.A., F.R.S. The Water Supply of
Hampshire (including the Isle of Wight), with Records of
Si_nkings and Borings, by William Whitaker, B.A., F.R.S,,
with contributions by Hugh Robert” Mill, D.Sc.,, LL.D,
W. Matthews, M. Inst. C.E.; and J. H. Thresh, M.D,, D.Sc.,
D:P.H. ¢ 5/-. . (Memoirs of the Geological Survey, 1910).
White, H. J. Osborne. The Geology of the Country around
Basingstoke. 2/-. (Memoirs of the Geological Survey, 190g)."
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_HAMPSHIRE FIELD CLUB

AND
ARCHE OLOGICAL SOCIETY

MEETINGS DURING THE YEAR IQIO.

I. Annual Meeting at Winchester. = The Twenty-fifth
Annual Meeting was held at the County Council Chambers
(by permission) on Thursday, April 21st, 1910, at 2.30 p.m,
Agenda: The Annual Report for 1909; The Balance Sheet
of Receipts and Expenditure for the year ending December
31st, 19og ; the Election of Officers for the ensuing year; the
proposed Programme of Meetings for the ensuing year; Mr.
Nisbett shewed a drawing of the fresco found behind the
bookcases in Cathedral library, and other objects of interest
were on view ; at the conclusion of the business, tea was pro-
vided at Dumper 's Restaurant by kind invitation of a member
of the Club. .

IT. Meeting at Bramshill and Eversley, Monday, 23rd
May, 1910. Directors: Mr. F. Mason Good (Hon. Local
Secretary) and the Honorary Secretary.

III. Meeting for Nature Study at Shanklm and Luccombe,
Isle of Wight, Tuesday, 7th June, 1g10. Director: Mr. W. G.
Colenutt, F.G.S. (Hon. Local Secretary).

IV. Meeting at Salisbury for Longford Castle, Wednesday,
2gth June, 1g10. - Director : The Hon. Secretary. .

Meeting at Winchester for Chilcomb, Wednesda zoth ’
uly. 1gro. Director: Mr. N. C. H. Nisbett, A. R
Hon. Local Secretary.)

VI. Meeting at Salisbury for Old. Sarum and Stonehenge,
Wednesday, 24th August, 1910. Director : The Hon. Secre- -
tary.

VII. Afternoon- Meetmg at Stockbridge for. Longstock,
Tuesday, 3oth - August, 1gr0. Director: Dr. Williams
Freeman, Vice-President.

VIII. Meeting at Shalfleet and Newtown, Isle of Wight,
Wednesday, 14th September, 1910. Director: Mr. G. W.
Colenutt, F.G.S. (Hon. Local Secretary).

IX. Special Meeting at Combley, Isle of Wight, on Thurs-
day, 22nd September, 1g10. .Directors: Mr. W. Dale, F.S.A.
EHon General Secretary), and Mr. G. W. Colenutt, F.G. S

Hon, Local Secretary).

X. " Afternoon Meeting for the study of Fung‘l at Beaulieu
Road, Wednesday, 1gth October, 1g10. Director: Mr. J. F.
Rayner. -






REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE

ON

ANCIENT EARTHWORKS AND
FORTIFIED ENCLOSURES, -

" Prepared for presentation to the Congress of
Archaological Societies, July 6th, 1910. .

COMMITTEE.

Lord Barcarres, M.P., F.S.A. (Chairman).

Mr. A. HADRIAN ALLCROFT, M.A.
Mr. W. ]J. Anprew, F.S.A,

Col. F. W, T, Arrres, F.S.A.
Mr. C. H. BorHaMmLEY, F.I.C, -
Mr J. G. N. CurFr. - ‘
Mr. E. S. CoesoLp, C.E., F.G.S.
Mr. S. DENisoON.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY GARDNER.
Mr. A. R. Gopparp, B.A,
Professor F, HAverFiELD, M.A,,

. Mr. W. H. St. Jou~ Horg, M.A.
. Mr. H. Lavgg, FS.A.
Mr. C. LvNay, F.S.A.

Mr. D. H. MONTGOMERIE.

Mr. C. H. Reap, LL.D.; P.S.A.
Mr. J. Horace Rounp, LL.D.
Col. O. E. Ruck, F.S.A.Scot. "
Mr. W. M. Tarp, LL.D., F.S.A.
President B.C. A, WinDLE, F.R.S.

Mr. A, G. CHATER, Hon. S_e:.

(Address : 41, Porchester Square, London, W.)



IN presenting its Annual Report the Committee wishes to point out
that on the present occasion it has interpreted the terms of its
enquiry more strictly than has been the case in some previous
years. Originally appointed for recording Ancient Defensive Earth-
works, and Fortified Enclosures, the Committee has found it
convenient, with the consent of the Congress, to include tumuli
and other earthworks of a non-defensive character. But of late
years the Report has been allowed to go beyond this and to
include notices of a number of explorations which cannot by
“any interpretation of its terms of reference be .said to come
" within the scope of the Committee’s enquiry; and when it is
borne in mind that such notices are omitted in the present instance,
the Commitfee considers that the following Report, restricted as
closely as possible to Earthworks pure and simple, may be
taken as indicating a constantly growing interest in this branch of
archzeology.

The Committee has great pleasure in announcing that it has
received from Dr. J. P. Williams-Freeman of the Hampshire
Field Club, a complete schedule, accompanied by 7o plans, of
the earthworks of Fampshire. These will -be preserved, with
the other papers presented to the Committee (including the
original drawings of all plans of earthworks that have appeared in
the Victoria County Histories), at the Society of Antiquaries’ Rooms.
Dr. Williams-Freeman’s schedule is the more valuable since it is
understood that the Victoria History of Hampshire will not include
a section on earthworks. The Committee may be allowed once more
to express the hope that this example may be more largely followed
in the counties which have not.yet been dealt with by the Victoria
County History.
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The Committee also gratefully acknowledges having received
from Mr, G. G. T. Treherne, of the Carmarthenshire Antiquarian
Society, a schedule of the antiquities of *Laugharneshire,” in which
district of South Carmarthenshire Mr. Treherne has done much
archzeological exploration. ' '

During the past twelve months the Committee and its local
correspondents have rendered assistance to the Ordnance - Survey
in revising or supplementing the earthworks on the 25-inch sheets
in the counties of Sussex, Hampshire, Berkshire and Surrey. It
is hoped that this .co-operation mafr be continued with the help of
local antiquaries who have knowledge of the subject. ‘

The Committee much regrets the delay in re-issuing its Scheme
of Classification announced last year. ~ This has been due to the
number of new plans which it is proposed to introduce in order
to give as complete a series of examples as pbssible, and to the
difficulty of visiting the various sites, many of them distant,
for the purpose of preparing these plans. Mr. D. H. Montgomerie,
to whom the Committee- is much indebted for having undertaken
the greater part of the work, now reports that the drawings are in
the hands of the engravers. The new Scheme will, thereforé, be
ready for distribution very shortly. .

It is much regretted that the circulation of the Committee’s Report
bas fallen off very considerably since it was'decided, last year, to make
a small charge for it. As the work of the Committee is now very
generally supported by the Societies in Union, and as everything tends
to show that it may be still better supported in the future, it-is felt to be
regrettable that some Societies should run the risk of checking what is
doubtless a growing interest among their members by ceasing to circulate
this Report on account of the small and unavoidable charge which was
unanimously agreed to at the last Congress.

PRESERVATION.

CAMBRIDGESHIRE.—COMBERTON.—The maze at this village, 5 miles
west of Cambridge, has been restored and enclosed. It had almost
entirely disappeared and is now re-dug on the lines of its original
design. :
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CARMARTHEN.—The Carmarthenshire Antiquarian Society is taking
aclive steps to prevent destruction of or the depositing of rubbish on
The Bulwarks at Carmarthen.

EssEx.—SAFFRON WALDEN.~—It is understood that, owing to
representations made by the Essex Archazological Society, the local

authorities are taking steps to preserve and restore:the maze on the
common.

OXFORDSHIRE.—SWERFORD.—As a result of representations made
to the Rector by the Oxford Architectural and Historical Society,
an earthwork of the mount-and-bailey type to the north of the church,

part of which it was proposed to use for an extension of the cemetery,
has been left unmterfered with.

Somxnsn.-—StokeIelgh Camp, near Bristol, Ifhe preservation of
which was mentioned in the last Report, has been presented by its
purchaser, Mr. George Wills, to the National Trust.

DESTRUCTION.

CaMBrIDGESHIRE.—The Cambridge Antiquarian Society reports
slight encroachments (which have been stopped) on the Dewl’s Dyke
.at Swaffham Prior.

CARNARVONSHIRE.—PENMAENMAWR.—Prior to the destruction of
this ancient fortress, which, as reported last year, will take place
through quarrying operations under a lease from the Crown, a survey is
being made by the Cambrian Archeological Association. .

HAMPSHIRE.—ALDERSHOT.—Dr. J. P. Williams-Freeman reports
that one of the banks of the earthwork known as Bat’s Hogsty has
quite recently been considerably dug away. This is on War Depart-
ment property, and Dr. Williams-Freeman at once called attention to
the damage. It is understood that this will be restored, and that steps
will be taken to prevent further destruction.

SoMERSET.—Mr. C. H. Bothamley reports that Worlebury Camp
has been damaged by the moving and rolling down of stones by boys
playing in the camp and adjoining woods. The Axbridge District
Branch of the Somersetshire Archaological Society is endeavounng to
prevent further mischief,
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SurrREY.—CouULsDON.—A portion of the earthwork known as the’
New Ditch, on Riddlesdown, has recently been destroyed thmugh the
building of a house on the line of the work.

Sussex.—BriGHTON.—Mr. H. S Toms reports that levelling
operations in connection with Brighton Race Course have revealed an
inner enclosure within White Hawk Camp. The rampart of this work
seems to have been levelled in ancient times and the ditch was,
superficially, only slightly apparent. The western portion of this has
now been obliterated by levelling, but the position has been recorded
by survey and sections. Flint cores, flakes and scrapers were found
on the surface during the levelling operations, and fragments of
bronze-age pottery and the bed-stone of a rude sandstone grain-rubber
were found in the top mould of the filling of the ditch.

BRIGHTON. —HOLLINGBURY CaMP.—Owing to the extension of
the golf course, the tee and green within the camp, of which complaint
has been made, will ultimately be removed. '

WILTSHIRE.—BINCKNOLL.—A quariy has recently been opened on
the edge of the escarpment which has slightly cut into the ditch of the
earthwork at Bignoll (Bincknoll). In company with Miss Story
Maskelyne the Rev. E. H. Goddard, as Secretary of the Wiltshire
Archzological Society, saw the tenant, and it is hoped that no
further injury will take place, another quarry being opened fifty yards
away.

YORKSHIRE.—SCARBOROUGH.—A tumulus in the grounds of Scar-
borough College, one of three marked in the O.S,, is being removed in
the "extension of the cricket ground. The Yorkshire Archzological
Society reports that this 'is unavoidable and that notes are
being made.

EXPLORATION.

BEDmRDsHIRE.,—'HdCKLIFFE.—;A' section across the highest part of .
the mound has been made under the direction of Mr. James Berry,
~and various objects were found, including an iron arrow-head and
medizval tiles. R
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BUCKINGHAMSHIRE.—TATTENHOE.—Mr. James Berry and Mr. W. '
Bradbrook excavated the mound known as Windmill Hill in May, 1910,
with results that point to its mediceval origin.

CAMBRIDGESHIRE.—BOWE'N.—_Three ‘round - tumuli were excavated
here by the Cambridge Antiquarian Society in August, 1909, and
proved to be of Roman date. One was double: a small circular Roman
tumulus surmounted by another Roman one.

CARMARTHENSHIRE.—Further examination of a tumulus on Cadno
Mountain and of other tumuli and cairns in the parish of Pendme are
reported by the Carmarthenshue Antiquarian Socmty

CUMBERLAND.—Mr. W, G Collingwood, F.S.A,, has made a further
exploration of Banniside Circle, Comston a bronze—age tumulus and
large ring-mound. ) :

DoRSET.—DORCHESTER. —The second period of excavations at
Maumbury Rings (the Roman Amphitheatre) took place in September,
1909, under the direction of Mr. H. St. George Gray. The western
half of the northern entrance-way.was uncovered and showed the same
structural details as on the eastern side, but in better preservation. A
large cutting was made at the S.S.W. end of the amphitheatre, where
the original structure has been modified, probably at the time of the
Civil War.

- DurHAM.—HAMSTERLEY.—Mr. E. Wooler reports that the .camp
known as The Castles has been excavated, and a guard-chamber
discovered in the thickness of the walls. The defences of the camp
consisted of a dry stone wall, the angles of which have been cleared.

GLAMORGAN.—Excavation of the annexe of the Roman.for‘t at
Gellygaer was begun last year, and is about to be continued. So far,
the work has been largely confined to the military baths.

MERIONETHSHIRE.~-ABERDOVEY.—Col. O. E. Ruck reports the
excavation of a cist at Bryn Dinas, Happy Valley, Aberdovey.

MONTGOMERYSHIRE.—CAERSWS.—The Liverpool Committee for .

Research in Wales is continuing its excavations at this Roman fort,

S
]
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SoMERSET.—LANSDOWN.—Further explorations of barrows on
Lansdown took place in July and September, 19cg, under the direction
of the Rev. H. H. Winwood and Mr. Thos. S. Bush,

PoNTER’S Bari, NEarR GLASTONBURY.—Mr. A, Bulleid,
F.S. A made two large cuttings through the vallum and ditch of this
'earthwork in July, 1909. Bronze age and Late Celtic shards of pottery
were found. No report has yet been pub]ished.
SuFFOLK.—BUTLEY.—Excavations took place in Apﬁl, 1910, under
;the direction of Mr. H. St. George Gray, of a roughly semi-circular
. earthwork at Staverton Park., The full results have not yet been
published, but a brief account of the work is given in *The Times” of

April 5th, 1910,

Sussex.—BeLTOUT.—The remains of two interesting valley
enclosures within the area of this camp were investigated in
August, 1909, by the Brighton and Hove Archzological Club,
under the direction of Mr. H. S. Toms, and proved to be of the
Bronze Age.

Excavations have taken place during the pasl year at
‘Chanctonbury ng, disclosing Roman foundations within the area of
the camp.

WILTSHIRE.—OLD SARUM. — Excavations ‘'were begun by the Society
of Annquanes in the autumn of 1909, and have so far been confined to
the Castle

CasTERLEY CaMP.—Mr. and Mrs. B, H. Cunnington made
. some preliminary excavations at this camp (on Salisbury Plain) in
September, 1gog. Their investigations were directed chiefly to
ascertaining which of the entrances ‘were original, and resulted in the
tracing of a hollow-way, which enters the camp through one of these
entrarices. -

BisHoP's CANNINGS.—Mr. and Mrs. Cunnington have also
excavated a rectangular valley entrenchment near Shepherd’s Shore and
proved its medizeval origin.




WiLtsHIRE.—AVEBURY.—No work has taken place on this site during
the last twelve months, but the excavations of the British Association
will be resumed next spring.

YORKSHIRE.—ELstack.—The excavations at the Roman camp at
Elslack have been completed and a full report will appear in the
Yorkshire Archzological ]ournal 2

The Committee hears with much interest that excavations
are to be resumed at Castleshaw.
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Colman (F. S.).—“The History of the Parish of Barwick-in-
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in the Long Barrow at Lanhill, near Chippenham.”
(Wilts Archzol. Mag., Vol. XXXVI.)
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* Curle (J.)—Excavations of the Roman Military Station at
Newstead, near Melrose.

Evans (D. Cledlyn).—“Carn Goch Camp” (with plans, etc.).
(Trans. Carmarthenshire Ant. Soc., Vol. V.)

Evans (G. Eyre).—“Carn Goch.” (Trans, Carmarthenshire
Ant. Soc., Vol. V.) '

Gardner (Willoughby).—* The Ancient Hill Fortress on Pen-y-
Corddyn, near Abergele.” (Archzological Cambrensis,
Jan,, 1910.) ' : : '

Gray (H. St. George).—Second Interim Report of the Excava-
tions at Maumbury Rings, Dorchester, 1gog. (Proc.
Dorset Field Club Vol. XXX. Also issued separately.)
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Gray (H. St. George).—* Excavations at the ‘Amphithéatre,’

" Charterhouse-on-Mendip, 1909.”  (Proc. Som. Archeeol.
and N. H. Soc,, Vol. LV.)

King (H.) and Polkinghorne (B. C.)—* Excavation of
a Barrow on Chapel Carn Brea, Cornwall” (Man,

1909, 87.)

Liverpool Committee for Excavation and Research in
Wales and the Marches. First Annual Report, 1908.
(University Press, Liverpool, 1909.)

Major (A. F.) and Chater (A. G.).—* Excavations at Downend,
near Bridgwater, 1908.” (Proc. Somerset Archzol.
and N. H. Soc., Vol. LV.)

Mortimer (J. R.).—“Opening of a Barrow near Borrow
Nook.” (Yorks Archzol..Journ., Vol. XX.)

Old Sarum, The Excavation of the Site of. (Wilts. Archzol.
Mag., Vol. XXXVI.) ’

Peers (C. R.).—“On the Excavation of the site of Basing
House, Hampshire.” (Archzologia, Vol. LXI, Part II.)

Royal Archezological Institute, Report of Annual Meeting.
(Contains references, with plan, to earthworks near
Somerton Castle, and near Basingthorpe, Lincs.)
(Archzological Journ., Vol. LXVI)

Tierney (H. C.).—* éwr_n-RheidO], Mysteries of the Carmarthen-
shire Hill Tops.” (Trans, Carmarthenshire Ant. Soc.,
Vol. V.) :

Toms (H. S.).—* Ancient Cultivations near Hollingbury Camp.”
(Brighton Herald, April 9, 1910.)

Villy (F.)—‘ An Exploration of Mounds near Cullingworth.”
(Bradford Scientific Journal, No. 19.)
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Westropp (T J.).—* Promontory Forts and Allied Structures in
- Northern County Kerry.” (Proc. Royal Soc. ‘Ant,
Ireland, Vol. XL. Part 1.)

———- ‘A Study of the Fort of Dun Aengusa in Inishmore,
Aran Isles, Galway Bay : its Plan, Growth and Records.”
(Proc. Royal Irish Academy, Vol. XXVIII, Section C,
No. 1.)

As stated in-the foregoing Report, the Committee’s new Scheme of
Classification (a 24-pp. pamphlet, fully illustrated with plans and sections
and containing the Committee’s recommendations for the scheduling of
earthworks) is now almost ready. Societies which did not subscribe in
advance may obtain copies of the Scheme in quantities of fifty and -
upwards on application to the Secretary, who will furnish particulars of
the price. The Scheme will be ready for distribution in October, and it
is hoped that early application may be made, as only a limited number
is being printed. ' .

A. G. CHATER,

Hon, Secretary to the Committee,

41, PORCHESTER SQUARE, LonDon, W.
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CLASSIFICATION.
The classification of defensive works recommended by the Committee
i now stands as follows :—
?« I Al Fm.'tresses partly inaccessible by reason of precipices,

" cliffs, or water, defended in part only by artificial works.

5. Fortresses on hill-tops with artificial defences, following the
natural line of the hill.

Or, though usually on high ground, less dependent on
natural slopes for protection.

¢. Rectangular or other enclosures of simple plan (including
forts and towns of the Romano-British period). J

p. Forts consisting only of a mount with encircling moat or
’ ]
fosse. ’

. Fortified mounts, wholly or partly artificial, with remains
of an attached court or bailey, or showing two or more
such courts, ‘

F. Homestead moats, consisting of simple or compound
enclosures formed into artificial islands by water moats,

6. Enclosures, mostly rectangular, partaking of the form
of F, but protected by stronger defensive works,, ram-
parted and fossed, and in some instances provided with
outworks. '

, ) H. Ancient village sites protected by walls, ramparts or fosses.

‘ xX. Defensive or other works which fall under none of the
above headings.
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JLrcheological Societies

IN UNJON WITH THE

B smizt_g of gnﬁqnuﬁes of Eﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ,
.-~ JULY 6T1H, 1910.

The Twenty-first Congress of Archaaolegsical Societies was held
. on July 6th, at Burlington House ; C. H. Read, Esq., LL.D., President
" of the Society of Antiquaries, in the Chair.

The Congress was attended by Delegates from the Society of
Antiquaries, the Royal Society of Antiquaries of Ireland, the
Cambrian Archaeological Association, the Royal Archeological
Institute, the British Record, Folk-lore and Huguenot Societies, the
Viking Club, the Berkshire, Buckinghamshire, Cambridge, Carmar-
thenshire, Cumberland and Westmorland, Derbyshire, Dorset,
Hampshire, East Herts, Lancashire and Cheshire, Leicestershire,
Norfolk and Norwich, Thoroton (Notts), Shropshire, Somerset,
Suffolk and Sussex Societies, Members of the Council, of the Earth-
works and other Committees, and other Delegates who omitted to
sign the Register.

The Report of the Council was read and approved, and the State-
ment of Accounts, audited by Mr. Wm. Minet, F.S.A., was adopted..
The thanks of the meeting were given to Mr. Minet for his services,
and he was appointed auditor for the ensuing year,

The following were elected as the Council :—

The Officers of the Soc. of Antiquaries. | W. H. St. John Hope, M.A.

w. _Palef Baildon, F.S.A. ) Henry Laver, F.S.A.

Lord Balcarres, M.P.; F.S.A. Wm. Minet, F.S.A.

Sir E. W. Brabrook, C.B., F.S.A,” | Canon Rupert Morris, D.D., F.S.A.
Rev. P, H. Ditchfield, M.A., F.S.A. | Ralph Nevill, F.S.A.

W. J. Freer, F.S.A. . Horace Round, M.A., LL.D.

G. L. Gomme, F.S.A. . B. Willis-Bund, M.A., F.S.A.
Emannel Green, F.S.A. ’ .
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The President drew attention to the paragraph in the Report
announcing the resignation of the Hon. Secretary, Mr. A. G. Chater,
who had found that "he had insufficient leisure to carry on the work
of the Congress secretaryship in addition to that of the Earthworks
Committee ; and proposed as his successor, Dr, William Martin,
F.S.A. Mr. Chater seconded the proposal, which was supported by
Mr. Ralph Nevill, F.S.A.,and Dr. Martin was elected Hon. Secretary.

Mr. Nevill then proposed a vote of thanks to the retiring Secretary,
which was seconded by Col. Attree, F.S.A., and the President
expressed his own and the Council’s regret that Mr. Chater should
find it necessary to give up the secretaryship, and their satisfaction
with the way the duties had been performed. during his year of:office.

" In acknowledging the vote of thanks, Mr. Chater regretted that
he had been able to do so little for the Congress ; he felt that he had
been somewhat rash in accepting the office last year, and that he had
left undone many things which a secretary with more time at his
disposal might have accomplished.

Dr. Martin, in accepting the office of Secretary, asked the sympathy
and co-operation of the gentlemen with whom he would come in
contact. . '

A discussion took place on the question ot the Archaological’
Index, the Council baving recommen%ed that in re:iga:d to (a) the
large Subject Index, 1665-1890, the Congress should assist Messrs.
Constable by endeavouring to obtain from the Societies guarantees
that a sufficient number of copies would be subscribed for to cover
the cost of production ; Messrs. Constable agreeing’ to .submit their
material for this Index to a Committee appointed by the Council; and
in regard to () the Annual Index, that the Societies should be invited
to guarantee continuous support, it being pointed out to them that
without such support its continued publication would be impossible.

The President read a Report of the Committee appointed to deal
with this question, in which it was suggested that the Congress might
resume publication of the Annual Index, and pointed out that a
‘difficulty might arise. with regard to back numbers, and that. in
the event of the Congress taking the publication into their own hands,
it would be necessary to refer intending purchasers .to Messrs.
Constable & Co. for these back numbers. It should be put as
strongly as possible at this Congress, that the Index must be con-
tinued ; but it was essential that Societies should’ support it to the
limit of their power. .

. Mr. P. M. Johnston, F.S,A.;(Sussex), mentioned that complaints
had been made among local Societies that of late years the Index had
been carelessly conipiled, which perhaps partly -accounted for the
decrease in subscriptions. . . .
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Mr. J. B. Willis-Bund, F.S.A., proposed that each Society should
guarantee to take a certain number of copies, say 100.

_Mr. G: C. Druce, (Royal Archological Institute), proposed that
4 list of the Societies now subscribing, with the number of copies they
take, should be obtained from Messrs. Constable.

Dr. M. Gaster (Folklore Society) _r(;posed that the invitation to
subscribe to the Index should be extended to other kindred Societies,
besides those in Union.

Mr, W. P. W. Phillimore (Thoroton Society) was of opinion that the
real demand for the Index only amounted to about 1000 copies, and
at present it was thrown away in large numbers. He was inclined-
to think that the machinery of the Congress would be better suited to.
pushing the sale of a limited number than that of a publisher, and
suggested that Societies should be asked to take a limited number and
sell them to their members.

Mr. H. St. George Gray (Somerset) thought that very few Societies
with a low rate of subscription could afford to take’ the Index and
"distribute it freely to all their members, whereas a small numbef of
single copies would be readily saleable at a shilling each:

 Mr, Willis-Bund said that the only way to deal with the question
‘was to refér it back to a Committee having full powers to deal with it
before next year. He asked how could the Congress go to the Prime
Minister with requests for facilities, when it was seen that it could not
maintain so essential a publication as its own Index.

The following' resolution, proposed by.-Mr. Phillimore and seconded
by Mr. Nevill, was carried unanimously :—

“That it be referred to the Committee to consider how the
Index can be produced most cheaply, and how it can best be
circulated at-such a price as to pay its cost, and with full powers
to make arrangements,” .

:Mr. Chater presented the Report-of the Earthworks Committee,
which will be issued separately. :

Mr: R. Garraway Rice, F.S.A. (Sussex), spoke of the short notice
given by the Ordnance Survey for answering questions relating to
earthworks. He thought twelve months’ notice might be given of the
revision of a county.

. . "

, Mr. Chater said that all information received from the Ordnance
Survey-was passed on_.at once to the Secretaries of the Societies
concerned,
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Major Freer, F.S.A. (Leicestershire), moved the adoption of the
Report with a vote of thanks to the Secretary. He thought a strong
appeal should go out to the Societies to support the Earthworks
Report, the circulation of which had fallen off very considerably since
the charge of 2s. 64. per one hundred copies had been agreed to at
the last Congress, '

Mr. Gray seconded the motion, and suggested that authors of
papers on excavations should always send a reprint to the Director-
General of the Ordnance Survey.

Dr. J. P. Williams-Freeman (Hants) gave some particulars of his
schedule of the earthworks of Hampshire and laid before the Congress
his original plans, copies of which are in the hands of the Earthworks
Committee. He said he had found people extraordinarily diffident
about measuring earthworks, and dwelt on the importance of taking
measurements for the sake of comparison.

The President spoke of the unprotected position of an earthwork
as compared with a building, and insisted on the importance of
circulating the Earthworks Report as widely as possible in order to
educate and interest people in the subject.

Mr. F. Were (Derbyshire), mentioned the Preceptory of the
Knights of Jerusalem at Stydd, Derbyshire, and said that his Society
would be glad of advice as to how to deal with these remains.

The President said that this was hardly a matter for the Congress.
The Derbyshire Society, if not competent to deal with it, might refer
the question to the Society of Antiquaries.

Mr. P. M. Johnston -introduced a motion expressing the cordial
approval of the Congress of an arrangement now in operation in the
Diocese ot Chichester, by which the Bishop has consented to submit
to an advisory Committee appointed by the Sussex Archzological
Society, before issuing a faculty, any proposals that may hereafter
arise for enlarging, restoring, altering, rebuilding or re-fitting any
ancient church or chapel-of-ease within the Diocese ; an arrangement
by which the Bishop also invites warning and advice in the case of
progosed alterations of importance—and a resolution that the Bishops
of the other English and Welsh Dioceses be formally invited by the
Congress to accept the services of similar consultative committees, if
formed by the local archzological societies, Mr. Johnston described
the genesis and working of the Committee, and ‘mentioned cases in
which it had successfully intervened. Many small alterations and
refittings were ' often done without a faculty. -The Bishop of
Chichester insisted on everything being submitted -to .him before a
faculty was granted. He was aware that in some Dioceses the
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decision -rested with the Chancellor and the consent of the Bishop
was a mere formality. The increasing archaeological spirit among the
clergy. would welcome such action as was proposed.

Mr. Garraway Rice, speaking as a member of the Committee
referred to, said he knew 0?&1 a case of a porch being altered without
either a faculty or the services of an architect, and without the Com-
mittee in 3uﬁtlon being appealed to. The work was done by a
builder under the direction o the vicar, and the Bishop otgened the.
new porch and highly approved of the work. He thought that in all
such cases a faculty ought to be applied for.

Prince Frederick Duleep Singh (Suffolk) said that in East Anglia
he had been struggling for many years to get some Committee
appointed, to which the clergy might be willing to submit schemes
for restoration. He had found that the Society for the Protection of
Ancient Buildings,lwhe :c:{)ﬁed to, preferred not to interfere locally,
when there was any 1 y that could take the matter up. The
proposed scheme would supply the very thing that was \w'::l.nte(}J

Mr. Nevill thought that the scheme wanted modification in one
point. There would probably be no difficulty in the case of large
Societies, but some’ Societies were very small and might consist of
one, or of very few energetic people, There would also be a difficulty
when a member of the Committee was also the local architect.
Rather than that the local Society should appoint the Committee, he
proposed the-appointment of an advisory Committee, in the election
of which the local Archzological Society should be consulted. He
pointed out that great tact would be required and that all would depend
on how the Bishops were approached.

The President said the matter was a very delicate one. There
was nothing the clergy, the Chancellor, or the Bishop more resented
than interference by someone outside the diocese. He doubted with
Mr. Nevill whether some Societies would find a sufficient number of
persons able to advise ; it required very considerable experience. He
understood that it was proposed in connection with the Historical
Monuments Commission to set up a central advisory board in London,
which would perform the very function for which it was proposed that
these local Cominittees should be set up. If this came into being, the
local committees would still be of use ; they could refer to the central
body in T.ondon, and many minor matters could be dealt with by them
which need not be referred to headquarters.

The Rev. A, D, Hill (Thoroton Soclet said that very many
dioceses were making great efforts to raise funds for church restoration,
and if it could be made apga.rent that the adoption of some such scheme
as this would influence subscriptions, that would be in its favour. He
pointed out that a faculty has to be submitted to the parishioners,
who therefore have the matter in their own hands.
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Several other- delegates having, spoken, the following -resolution,
proposed by Mr. Nevill, seconded by thé Rev. P. H.iDitchfield, F.S.A:
(Berks.), and accepted by Mr. Johnston, was carried : — .

“That this Congress approve the principle of Mr. Johnston’s
‘proposal and request the Council in conjunction with Mr.
Johnston to draw up a recommendation that may be

circulated by the Congress to the Bishops.,” -
" "Mr. Nevill brought foward a matter that had recently been
discussed in Nofes and Queries—the need of access to ecclesiastical
documents, other than wills, at Somerset House. Such documents
would be useful to the historian and the genealogist, but at present
they were kept locked up and the officials declined to admit
knowledge of them, -~ - : :

Mr. ‘Phillimore proposed to include Probate Records, and said
that at that moment a memorial had been prepared for facilities of
access such as were asked for. :

. Mr. Nevill agreed to the amendment and the resolution was
carried in the following terms : -

“That H.M. Government .be respectfully asked to direct that
arrangements shall be made by thé authorities at Somerset
‘House that access for literary study may be given to all
documents, ecclesiastical as well as Probate -Records, now -
in their charge, in the same way as at the Public Record
Office.”

Col.  P. Saltmarshe (East Riding Society) -called attention to the
desirability of expediting the indexing and calendaring of ancient
documents at the lJRecc:rr Office, and moved a resolution that repre-
sentations should be made on' the subject. He said, that those who
study.at the Record Office are compelled to waste much- time.
It would not cost much," for instance, to index the list of fines, and
the sale of the index might partly cover the cost. As regards the
great Law Rolls, with the exception. of an ancient calendar, they
were altogether unindexed except for two years of Edward II. He
thought that the Congress was .a body which might legitimately
make representations to Government on the subject. . .

Mr. W, Paley Baildon, F.S.A., thought that some reference ought
to be made to the great amount of work done by the present staff
of the Record Office, and spoke of the danger of attempting to hurry
work of this kind. Hurry. was simply a question of cash and of
employing outside help. He proposed as an amendment:— '

“That this meeting of the Congress of Archzec;logical.
Societies :in recording its ap?rec:atmn of the excellent work
now being done by'the staff of .the Public.Record Office in the
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issuing of Calendars and Indexes, expresses the hope that some
means may be found to increase and expedite the issue of future
volumes, and to that end requests the Council to communicate
with the Master of the Rolls, the Deputy-Keeper of Public
Records and H.M. Treasury and to take such further steps as
may seem desirable.”

~ Col. Saltmarshe expressed himself ready to accept this resolution
and fully endorsed what Mr. Baildon had said as to the excellent
work of the officials of the Record Office, whom he had found the
. most civil, courteous and obliging men in the public service,
The resolution was then carried.

On the motion of Dr. Gaster, a vote of thanks was péssed to the
Chairman, and to the Society of Antiquaries for the use of the room.

A. G. CHATER,
Hon, Secretary, 1910,

41, PORCHESTER SQUARE,
LoNDON, W.
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